



RULE-MAKING ORDER
(RCW 34.05.360)

CR-103 (10/1/89)

Agency: State Board for Community and Technical Colleges (SBCTC)

- Permanent Rule
 Emergency Rule

(1) Date of adoption: Thursday, June 17, 1993

(2) Purpose:

To formally transfer the authority from the Superintendent of Public Instruction's Office to the State Board for Community and Technical College to administer the adult education program for the State of Washington.

(3) Citation of existing rules affected by this order:

Repealed: SPI will repeal the rules that formerly gave them the authority to
Amended: administer the adult education program in the state of Washington
Suspended: basic

(4) Authority for adoption:

Statute: RCW 28B.50.915
Other Authority:

(5.1) PERMANENT RULE ONLY

Pursuant to notice filed as WSR _____ on _____ (date).

Describe any changes other than editing from proposed to adopted version:

(5.2) EMERGENCY RULE ONLY

Pursuant to RCW 34.05.350 the agency for good cause finds:

- (a) That immediate adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare, and that observing the time requirements of notice and opportunity to comment upon adoption of a permanent rule would be contrary to the public interest.
 (b) That state or federal law or federal rule or a federal deadline for state receipt of federal funds requires immediate adoption of a rule.

Reasons for this finding:

The emergency rule adoption initiates and establishes Chapter 180-72 WAC relating to the adult basic education program and its administration.

(5.3) Any other findings required by other provisions of law as precondition to adoption or effectiveness of rule?

Yes No If yes, explain:

(6) Effective date of rule:

Permanent Rules

- 31 days after filing
 Other (specify) _____ *

* (If less than 31 days after filing, specific finding in 5.3 under RCW 34.05.380(3) is required)

Emergency Rules

- Immediately
 Later (specify) _____

CODE REVISER USE ONLY

CODE REVISER'S OFFICE
STATE OF WASHINGTON
FILED

JUN 24 1993

TIME: 11:40

WSR 93.13.009
4 KR

NAME (TYPE OR PRINT)

Claire C. Krueger

SIGNATURE

Claire C. Krueger

TITLE

Executive Assistant/Rules Coordinator

DATE

6/24/93

Chapter 180-72 WAC
ADULT EDUCATION PROGRAM

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 5-70, filed 4/28/70)

WAC 180-72-040 Purpose--Cooperation policy. The major purpose of adult education in the state of Washington is to raise the educational level of adults in the state who have not obtained an education consistent with their ability to learn and to provide adults disadvantaged through lack of a high school diploma with the opportunity to complete their high school education and to obtain proper recognition for it.

The several statutes relating to adult education have vested authority and responsibility for conduct of adult education programs in the community and technical colleges (~~(and the common schools and)~~) for administration and promulgation of rules and regulations in the (~~(superintendent of public instruction, the state board of education and the)~~) state board for community and technical college education. (~~(In view of the interrelated responsibilities, cooperation in the development and conduct of adult education programs by the educational agencies concerned is essential to achievement of the major purpose herein stated. The provisions of this chapter therefore are designed to reflect and facilitate such cooperation.)~~)

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 90-17-009, filed 8/6/90, effective 9/6/90)

WAC 180-72-045 Authority--Regulatory provisions recognize intent of specific acts. The policies, rules and regulations hereinafter in WAC 180-72-050 through 180-72-075 set forth recognize the intent of (1) chapter 28B.50 RCW to (a) place major responsibility for adult education in the community and technical colleges, (b) provide for the conduct of adult education programs by the community and technical colleges, community-based organizations, and common schools under arrangements between the appropriate community or technical college (~~(and common)~~) school district, (c) permit the issuance of high school diplomas by the community and technical colleges under rules and regulations promulgated by the superintendent of public instruction and the state board of education, and (d) provide for the administration of certain federally supported adult education programs by the (~~(superintendent of public instruction in cooperation with the state director of community)~~) executive director of the state board for community and technical colleges; (2) RCW 28A.225.220 to permit boards of directors of common school districts to make arrangements with adults wishing to attend school; and (3) chapter 28A.305 RCW which provides that the state board of education in cooperation with the state board for community and technical colleges shall prescribe course requirements for high school completion.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 5-70, filed 4/28/70)

WAC 180-72-050 Adult education defined. For the purpose of this chapter "adult education" shall be defined as set forth in RCW 28B.50.030(11) which provides as follows: "Adult education" shall mean all education or instruction, including academic, vocational education or training, and "occupational education" provided by public educational institutions (~~(, including common school districts)~~) and community-based organizations for persons who are eighteen years of age and over or who hold a high school diploma or certificate: *Provided*, That "adult education" shall not include basic skills instruction, English as a second language, academic education or instruction for persons under twenty-one years of age who do not hold a high school degree or diploma and who are attending a public high school for the sole purpose of obtaining a high school diploma or certificate: *Provided further*, That "adult education" shall not include education or instruction provided by any four year public institution of higher education (~~(: And provided further, That "adult education" shall not include education or instruction provided by a vocational technical institute)~~).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 5-70, filed 4/28/70)

WAC 180-72-060 Adult high school completion education--Community college and common school district participation. (1) **Program authorization.** A community or technical college district and a common school district under provisions of RCW 28B.50.530 may enter into agreement for the conduct of an adult education program by the common school district (~~(in)~~) on behalf of the community or technical college district when such program will not conflict with an existing program of the same nature and in the same geographical area conducted by the community or technical college district: *Provided*, That such program shall be established, administered and operated in accordance with procedures and guidelines prescribed by the (~~(superintendent of public instruction in cooperation with the state)~~) executive director of community and technical colleges.

(2) **Cooperative study of needs.** Community and technical colleges, community-based organizations, and common school districts are encouraged to study cooperatively the needs in their own communities for educational services designed for adults to complete their high school training and, consistent with statutory provisions and requirements prescribed in this chapter, to provide appropriate programs to meet such needs.

WAC 180-72-065 Community college high school diploma programs. (1) **Minimum requirements for high school diploma.** The minimum requirements and procedures for the issuance of a high school diploma by or through a community or technical college district shall be as prescribed by the state board of education in this section and chapters 180-51 and 180-56 WAC.

(2) **Provisions governing program for persons eighteen years of age and over.**

(a) The appropriate school district (~~or~~), community college or technical college education official shall evaluate the previous educational records of the student and may provide evaluative testing to determine the student's educational level and shall recommend an appropriate course or courses of study upon the successful completion of which the student will be eligible for the high school diploma.

(b) Satisfaction of minimum course requirements may be met by one or more of the following methods--actual completion of courses regularly conducted in high school, (~~vocational technical institute~~) technical college and/or community college; approved correspondence or extension courses; supervised independent study; or testing in specific subject areas.

(c) The appropriate education official shall exercise reasonable judgment in appraising the educational experience of the student either in or out of a formal school program to determine the degree to which the student has satisfied the minimum credit requirements for completion of the high school program. Consideration may be given to work experience, vocational training, civic responsibilities discharged by the adult and other evidences of educational attainment.

(d) A high school diploma shall be granted to each individual who satisfactorily meets the requirements for high school completion herein and hereinbefore in subsection (1) set forth, the said diploma to be issued by the appropriate school district (~~or~~), community college or technical college: *Provided*, That in the event the school district and the community college or technical college are unable to agree as to which educational agency shall issue the said diploma, the superintendent of public instruction shall make the decision and designate the issuing agency. Records of diplomas issued under the provisions of this subsection shall be maintained by the issuing agency.

(3) **Provisions governing program for persons under eighteen years of age.**

(a) The high school principal shall evaluate the previous educational record of the individual and prior to his enrollment in courses and in cooperation with the appropriate education official of a community college or (~~vocational technical institute~~) technical college shall approve the program of studies leading to the high school diploma.

(b) The student must be assigned a program supervisor.

(c) Satisfaction of the minimum credit requirements may be met by one or more of the following methods--actual completion of courses regularly conducted in high school, (~~vocational technical institute~~) technical college, and/or community college; approved correspondence or extension courses; or approved supervised independent study.

(d) The school district shall grant the regular high school diploma or certificate of graduation to each individual who satisfactorily meets the requirements for high school completion herein and hereinbefore in subsection (1) set forth: *Provided*, That the school district may delegate the responsibility for granting such a diploma or certificate to the appropriate community college or (~~vocational technical institute~~) technical college. Records of diplomas issued under provisions of this subsection shall be maintained by the issuing agency.

(4) Each fiscal year each community or technical college district shall file a statistical report with the state board for community and technical colleges and the state board of education, and with the review committee established by the subsection. The statistical report shall consist of, but not be restricted to, the number of high school diplomas issued for that fiscal year with subdivisions indicating students under eighteen years of age, over eighteen years of age, and those diplomas issued through special authorities such as PREP. Additional reports may be filed by the committee established herein with the state board of education and with the local board of trustees of the community college district. The form and content of these additional reports shall be determined by the (~~state superintendent of public instruction after consultation with the~~) executive director of the office of the state board for community (~~college education~~) and technical colleges in consultation with the superintendent of public instruction.

A review committee shall be established in each community and technical college district composed of professional educators working within that district. The executive director of the state board for community and technical colleges and the superintendent of public instruction shall appoint one superintendent, one high school principal, one high school counselor, and one high school teacher to serve on such committee. The president of the community or technical college district may appoint one adult educator to serve on the committee.

This committee shall meet at the direction of the superintendent of public instruction for the purpose of reviewing not more than once each year the high school diploma program at the community or technical college in relationship to its compliance with high school diploma requirements established in chapters 180-51, 180-56 and 180-72 WAC. After each review, the committee shall prepare and submit an oral and written report to the board of trustees of the college district and a written report to the state board of education which sets forth the committee's findings and suggestions for any improvements in the program deemed necessary or advisable.

The individual members of the review committee, who are employees of a school district may request from the community or technical college district reimbursement for travel and expenses at such rates and for such purposes as are allowed state employees by law and rules of the office of program planning and fiscal management. The superintendent of public instruction may reimburse for substitutes required in connection with teacher members of the committee as provided by law.

(5) Any high school graduation diploma issued by or through a community or technical college district shall certify that the diploma is issued in compliance with high school graduation

requirements established by the state board of education and procedures established by the superintendent of public instruction.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 5-70, filed 4/28/70)

WAC 180-72-070 **Federal programs for adult education.** It is the responsibility of the (~~superintendent of public instruction in cooperation with the state~~) executive director of community and technical colleges to administer the programs of adult education supported in whole or in part by federal monies made available for such purpose to the state board of (~~education and/or the superintendent of public instruction;~~) community and technical colleges, and to authorize the operation of such programs by the common school districts of the state in accordance with procedures established by the (~~superintendent of public instruction~~) state board of community and technical colleges: *Provided,* That the administration and operation of such adult education programs shall be consistent with the policy hereinbefore in WAC 180-72-040 set forth.

moved
from WSR
93-14-010
G